ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 27, 2007
1:30 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Al bert Kookesh, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senator Bill W el echowski
Senator Gary W I ken

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Donny O son

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Hollis French
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 130
"An Act relating to the registration of certain vehicles owned
by ranchers, farners, or dairy workers."

MOVED SB 130 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 68

“"An Act requiring notor vehicle insurers to provide to the
conm ssioner of admnistration a database |Ilisting vehicle
i nsurance policy information that will allow the comm ssioner to
verify whether nmandatory notor vehicle insurance has been
obtained, limting access to the database, establishing nethods
for proving that mandatory notor vehicle insurance is in place,
allowing the additional penalties of suspending registration and
vehi cl e impoundnent and forfeiture for failure to have mandatory
not or vehi cl e insurance, and authorizing hearings after
suspension of registration for failure to have nandatory notor
vehi cl e i nsurance."

MOVED CSSB 68( TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 130

SHORT TI TLE: RANCH, FARM DAIRY VEHI CLE REG STRATI ON
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GREEN

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 27, 2007



03/ 21/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 21/ 07 (S) TRA, FIN
03/ 27/ 07 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 68
SHORT TITLE. MOTOR VEH CLE | NSURANCE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FRENCH

01/ 26/ 07 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 26/ 07 (S) L&C, TRA, FIN

02/ 08/ 07 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 08/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 08/ 07 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 27/ 07 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

02/ 27/ 07 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 27/ 07 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 06/ 07 (S L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 06/ 07 (S) Moved CSSB 68(L&C) Qut of Conmmittee
03/ 06/ 07 (S) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 07/ 07 (S L&C RPT CS 3DP 1DNP 1AM NEWTI TLE
03/ 07/ 07 (S) DP: ELLIS, DAVIS, STEVENS

03/ 07/ 07 (S DNP:  BUNDE

03/ 07/ 07 (S) AM  HOFFMAN

03/ 20/ 07 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 20/ 07 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 27/ 07 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Darwi n Pet erson

Staff to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 130 for the sponsor

Larry DeVil biss, Director

Di vision of Agriculture

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)
Wasi |l a, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Steve Van Troba, representing hinself
Pal mer, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Duane Bannock, Director
Di vi si on of Mdtor Vehicles

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 27, 2007



Depart ment of Adm nistration
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n support of SB 130

Bill Ward, representing hinself
Del ta Junction, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Adam Gi swol d, representing hinself
Del ta Junction, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Nate Giswol d, representing hinself
Del ta Junction, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Char| es Pecchi o, President

Veri Sol Verification Solutions |Incorporated
Kennesaw, GCeorgia

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | n support of SB 130

Tom McG ath, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Kenton Brine, Northwest regional nanager

Property Casualty Insurers Association of America
Aynpia, WA

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I n support of SB 130

Al lison Bi astock

Staff to Senator French

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Avail able for questions on SB 130

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R ALBERT KOOKESH called the Senate Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:30:29 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators Cowdery, Welechowski, WIken, and Chair
Kookesh.

SB 130- RANCH, FARM DAl RY VEH CLE REG STRATI ON

CHAI R KOOKESH announced the consi derati on of SB 130.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 27, 2007



DARW N PETERSON, aide to Senate President Lyda G een, sponsor of
SB 130, explained that farm vehicles are getting heavier and
bi gger and the current maxi num wei ght regulations are out of
date; the bill will update the regulation from 16,000 to 20,000
| bs.

1:32:45 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how nmany vehicles will be affected by
the bill.

MR. PETERSON replied that there are 466 farm vehicles currently
registered in Alaska with expiration dates of 2007, 2008, or
2009.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked for the rationale for the current
16,000 I bs restriction.

MR. PETERSON replied that true conmercial vehicles shouldn’t be
used for farm purposes, so a weight restriction applies to
smal l er farmtrucks.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there’s any concern about weight
i mpact on the road system

MR. PETERSON replied that there is a concern about road damage
regardi ng heavy trucks but the difference nade by the bill wll
be negligible.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what size a 20,000 | b truck woul d be.

MR. PETERSON replied that it's larger than a Dodge Ram pi ck-up
truck, in the same category as a cargo van or a bus.

1: 35: 16 PM
CHAIR KOOKESH asked for an explanation of the farm vehicle
regi stration plate.

MR. PETERSON replied that the specialized farm plate is in the
sane category as legislator plate or veteran plate.

1: 36: 08 PM
SENATOR OLSON asked if other states have simlar farm vehicle
progr ans.

MR. PETERSON replied that al nost every state does.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 27, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if other states have simlar weight
l[imts or just simlar plates.

MR. PETERSON replied that he was referring to just the
speci alized plate program and that weight limts vary for each
st at e.

1: 37: 17 PM
SENATOR W LKEN asked if there’'s a committee substitute for the
bill regarding the plate.

MR. PETERSON replied that the bill doesn't change farm plate
| egi sl ati on.

SENATOR WLKEN asked why a particular panphlet was nmade
avail able to the comm ttee.

MR. PETERSON replied that it was sinply to show an exanple of
what the farm plate | ooks |ike.

1:39: 04 PM

LARRY DEVILBISS, Director for the Dvision of Agriculture,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), said that the farm plates
don’t necessarily need to be changed by the bill, and the
departnment finds it appropriate to raise the limt to 20,000
| bs.

1:41: 08 PM

STEVE VAN TROBA, representing hinmself, said that when he travels
to Alberta, Canada, to buy hay and he pays taxes that would be
avoi ded by having farm pl ates.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI asked if M. Van Troba opposes the bill.
MR. VAN TROBA replied that he supports the bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if M. Van Troba will be required to
pay additional fees if the bill does not pass.

MR. VAN TROBA answered yes.

1:43: 04 PM

DUANE BANNOCK, Director for the Division of Mtor Vehicles,
Department of Administration (DOA), related the history of the
weight-limt law in Al aska and said the DW supports the bill.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 27, 2007



SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked for the punishment for driving over
the weight limt.

MR. BANNOCK said that being over-limt with the wong plate
would result from one of three elenents: a DW error, inproper
information provided by the driver, or fraudulent use of the
plate. The two |atter scenarios would result in violation fines.

1:45:18 PM

SENATOR COWDERY asked if the Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOTPF) controls over-wei ght vehicle permts.

MR. BANNCCK said that the DOTPF does control such permts.

BILL WARD, representing hinself, said that it's appropriate to
raise the weight limt; licensed vehicle governnent is different
from comercial vehicle governnment, including hours of service
regul ations, driver's |license requirenents, and inspections.
Qperation wthin current statute is possible but truck
nodi fications and updates wll be difficult wthout the new
requi renments.

1: 50: 07 PM

ADAM GRI SWOLD, representing hinmself, said that it’s hard to buy
trucks that nmeet the current weight limt, and he is in favor of
the bill.

NATE GRI SWOLD, representing hinself, said that he does have a
need for new equipnment but it’s hard to find under current
regul ati on.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked for the will of the commttee.

1:51:18 PM

SENATOR COWDERY notioned to report SB 130 from committee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and attached fiscal note(s). There

bei ng no objection, the notion carri ed.

SB_ 68- MOTOR VEHI CLE | NSURANCE

CHAI R KOOKESH announced the consideration of SB 68. He asked for
a notion to adopt the commttee substitute (CS).

1:53: 18 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 27, 2007



SENATOR CONDERY noved to adopt the proposed comm ttee substitute
to SB 68, |abeled 25-LS0342\N, Version N, as the working
docurent of the commttee. There being no objection, the notion
carri ed.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked t he sponsor to present the bill.
1:54: 04 PM

SENATOR FRENCH explained that SB 68 wll make it easier for
police to verify whether a driver does have insurance on their
car or not. 14 percent of Al askan drivers are uninsured, but 28
percent of crashes involve an uninsured driver. Currently
there’s no nmethod for enforcing a mandatory insurance law, this
bill will make points of contact for verification. There will be
an online nethod, which has been shown to be effective, as well
as a provision that allows municipalities to inmpound uninsured
cars.

He pointed out that the commttee substitute is the result of
many hours of work with industry representatives to make sure
that the bill is acceptable to everyone.

1: 58: 02 PM

SENATOR COWNDERY asked if the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
checks for insurance on a car.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that currently it's an honor system

SENATOR COWDERY asked if the new system proposed by the bil
wi || make proving insurance mandatory.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that if the online system is adopted it
will make it much easier to prove insurance, and gave an exanple
of how people will show fal se proof of insurance.

SENATOR COANDERY asked if an anendnent to exenpt comrercia
vehi cl es woul d be accept ed.

SENATOR FRENCH said that he woul d; npst states exenpt comrercia
vehicles from the online verification system because of the
relatively low risk of non-insurance.

SENATOR COWNDERY asked where in the bill an amendnent woul d best
fit.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 27, 2007



SENATOR FRENCH replied that section five would be best.

SENATOR CONDERY nmade a notion to adopt a conceptual anendnent to
SB 68, allowing for the exenption of comercial vehicles.

SENATOR W LKEN objected, and said what works for autonobile
drivers should be good for conmmercial drivers.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked why commercial vehicles should be
exenpted fromthe bill.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that the DW said that virtually al
commercial vehicles carry insurance through the driver, and it’s
not concerned about such drivers carrying insurance.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the bill creates sone sort of
burden for comercial vehicles, and why they should be treated
differently.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that the DW would have to answer the
guesti on.

2:01: 44 PM

MR. BANNOCK said that conmercial vehicles would only be exenpted
from electronic verification of insurance. Many comrercially
owned vehicles are self insured and thus wouldn’t be included in
the system also, in the comrercial category there are 50,000
vehicles in the state out of a total of 900,000 registered
vehicles, so clearly nost vehicles are not commercial.

He added that he would prefer to use the I|anguage "vehicles
registered comercially"” as opposed to “commercial vehicles”;
rental car conpanies are self-insured comercial vehicles as
wel | .

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI replied that he understood the difficulties
of including commercial vehicles in the online system and asked
for the nunber of accidents involving uninsured comrercial
vehi cl e.

MR. BANNOCK replied that he didn’t have state data, but that
national ly, accidents and injuries involving commercial vehicles
conpose less than 5 percent of the total, even including
situations where the conmmercial vehicle is not at fault.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 27, 2007



2:05:33 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for a summary of any burden incurred
by including commercial vehicles in the bill.

MR. BANNOCK replied that he didn't have a prepared answer, but
that self-insured vehicle information is not readily available
onl i ne.

SENATOR CONDERY asked how many drivers w thout insurance also do
not have a valid license.

MR. BANNCCK replied that he didn’'t have the nunber avail abl e.

SENATOR OLSON asked how often conmmerci al vehicle accidents cause
the victins to go on social assistance due to injuries or
financial ram fications.

MR. BANNOCK said that he didn't have any rel ated dat a.
SENATOR OLSON asked if the sponsor had such information
SENATOR FRENCH sai d that he couldn't answer the question.
SENATOR OLSON asked how a person proves sel f-insurance.
MR. BANNOCK said that the matter is addressed in AS 28. 10.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked for a suggestion for an appropriate place
for the conceptual anmendnent.

SENATOR FRENCH suggest ed | anguage for the anmendnment, and that it
could be put in section five of the bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked if it was Chair Kookesh’s intent to
nove the bill that day.

CHAI R KOOKESH replied that he had intended to nove the bill, but
that there seened to be concern about the amendnent.

SENATOR FRENCH said that the tineline was at the will of the
comm ttee.

SENATOR OLSON said that commercial vehicles would be encunbered
by being included in the bill’s online verification el enent.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 27, 2007



CHAI R KOOKESH said that he didn't have the intention of keeping
the bill in commttee.

SENATOR FRENCH conmented that the bill does go to another
conmttee after leaving the Senate Transportation Standing
Commi ttee.

CHAI R KOOKESH replied that he'd like to get the work done in the
current conmmttee.

SENATOR FRENCH repeated the suggested |anguage for the
conceptual anendnent.

2:11: 23 PM

CHAIR KOOKESH asked if there was further objection to the
amendnent .

SENATOR W LKEN said that he maintained his objection

There was a roll <call vote, and Senators Cowdery, d son,
W el echowski, and Chair Kookesh voted yes; Senator WI ken voted
no. Therefore, the conceptual anendnment to SB 68 passed 4:1.

2:12: 21 PM

CHARLES PECCH O president of VeriSol Verification Solutions
| ncorporated, said that the mmjor issue with the approach to
verifying insurance is that proof can easily be forged or
m srepresented. There have been pilot prograns done in severa
states with the online approach, which perfornms real tine
verifications; the accuracy 1is equivalent to <calling the
i nsurance conpany on the phone. He explained that the existing
system isn't changing wth the bill, just becomng nore
effective.

He added that |ess than one half of one percent of conmercia
vehi cles are uninsured. Commrercial vehicles will be included in
the programin the future.

2:17:21 PM

SENATOR COADERY asked if insurance conpanies can legally give
out insurance information in response to public inquiry.

MR. PECCH O replied that the insurance conpanies provide the
data directly to the state, and it is not nmade public.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 27, 2007



SENATOR CONDERY asked how the situation of cancelled policies is
addr essed.

MR. PECCHI O replied that the system can automatically check for
cancel l ed insurance, and it is updated on a daily basis.

SENATOR CONDERY asked for the cost of the programto the state.

MR PECCHI O replied that the state would pay a nonthly fee
ranging from1l to 3 cents per vehicle per nonth.

2:19:54 PM

SENATOR WLKEN remarked that two states are starting full-on
online verification progranms, and asked for any others that may
be using it.

MR. PECCHI O replied that Florida was the first state to use the
program and Womng is currently in a pilot stage. klahoma and
Texas are getting the program started soon.

SENATOR W LKEN asked if there are any states that have been
operational for at |east a year.

MR. PECCH O replied that the specifications were released only a
year ago.

SENATOR WLKEN asked how the software wuld work in a
theoretical situation

MR. PECCHI O expl ai ned how t he software operates.

SENATOR WLKEN asked for <clarification on the wuse of the
sof t war e.

MR PECCHIO replied in explaining that there are severa
di fferent ways of researching a vehicle in the system

2:24: 25 PM

SENATOR WLKEN asked if an active and reliable internet
connection is needed at all tinmes for the system to work
properly.

MR PECCH O replied that that was correct. The same sort of
technology is used with credit card verification software.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 27, 2007



SENATOR W LKEN replied that many places in the state have uneven
i nternet access, and asked who else in Anerica offers simlar
sof t war e.

MR. PECCH O replied that there are no conpetitors so far
2:25:30 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the system has ever been hacked or
if any data has ever been |ost.

MR. PECCH O replied that the system has never been hacked, and
the conpany doesn’t nmaintain any data itself.

2:26: 09 PM

SENATOR FRENCH said that the bill includes |anguage that allows
for proof of insurance such as a card, and that the internet
systemis just an option. The departnent and individual officers
will have roomfor interpretation

SENATOR (OLSON said that some people are suspicious of
guestionabl e or erroneous information, and he wants to nmake sure
that there won't be any harassnment incurred by the bill.

SENATOR FRENCH sai d he shares the concern

SENATOR COLSON asked if there’s a way to lower prem uns through
the action of the bill.

SENATOR FRENCH replied that the objective is to reduce the
nunber of uninsured drivers, and ideally premuns would be
reduced as a result.

SENATOR W LKEN cauti oned agai nst noving the bill too quickly, as

it’s a huge policy call that could end badly; nore opinions
shoul d be solicited.

CHAIR KOOKESH said that he had previously let the bill sit in
conmittee for a week.

SENATOR FRENCH commented that he neither pushes nor pulls his
bills.

2:30:49 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 27, 2007



TOM MCGRATH, representing hinself, said that he has worked with
simlar bills in the past, and asked the commttee to consider
the bill, which is well-crafted. People who do not have
insurance are a costly liability. He related the inpact of
uni nsured drivers on his business, and encouraged the conmmttee
to nove the legislation forward.

2:33: 31 PM

KENTON BRINE, Northwest Regional WMnager of the Property
Casualty Insurers Association of America (PClIAA), said that he
thinks the bill is now headed in the right direction. He has
been working with Senator French and his aide to inprove the
| egislation, in the areas of the effective date and terns of use
of the program by the DW.

He added that nore specification should be added in terns of
access to the database. The PCIAA is also interested in the
forms of identifiers to be used; sone conpanies don’'t provide
Vehicle Identification Nunbers (VIN) in their i nsurance
pol i ci es.

He cautioned the commttee that there is no perfect system for
getting uninsured drivers off the roads; any crackdown w |l work
for a certain anmpbunt of time, but not forever. Making insurance
as affordable as possible is perhaps the nost effective way of
fixing the problem

2:39:21 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the ideal effective date would be
in 20009.

MR. BRINE replied affirmatively.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if the sponsor had any conment on the
ef fective date.

ALLI SON BI ASTOCK, aide to Senator French, said that the final
bill would include |anguage pertaining to the effective date.
The DW has said it would be ready earlier than 2009.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if the effective date, as currently
witten, would be 90 days from signing.

M5. BIASTOCK replied that the DW would be able to get the
program up and running with the 90-day effective date.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- March 27, 2007



SENATOR OLSON asked if the major difficulty would be getting the
technol ogy in place.

M5. BIASTOCK replied that the program wuld be wusing the
exi sting conmputer systenm it’'s a matter of getting the software.

SENATOR OLSON said that there’'s no reason to wait until 2009 to
put the programin place.

2:41: 14 PM
CHAlI R KOOKESH asked for the will of the commttee.

SENATOR COWDERY notioned to report the commttee substitute to
SB 68, as anmended, from comittee W th i ndi vi dua
recommendati ons and acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no
obj ection, CSSB 68(TRA) noved from the Senate Transportation
Comm ttee.

CHAI R KOOKESH asked the sponsor to |ook at the anmendnent to make
sure the title would still be appropriate.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Kookesh adjourned the neeting at 2:42:09 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 27, 2007



